
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, February 3, 2025 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 1 
 

1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements 
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held January 9, 2025 

8. Employee Recognition 
9. Downtown Development Authority Board Appointment 

 

BUSINESS 
 

10. Intergovernmental Agreement with Dawson County: Shoal Creek Road Paving Project 
11. Changes to Projects Concerning Local Maintenance and Improvement Grant Funds 
12. Atlanta Motorsports Park: Special Event Request to Exceed Sound Limits 

 

  STAFF REPORTS 
 

13. Bob Bolz, City Manager 
14. Robin Gazaway, Finance Director 

 

  MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

     EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NEEDED: Pending or Potential Litigation, Real Estate Acquisition and/or Personnel 
 

     RESERVED FOR POTENTIAL ACTION ON EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS, IF NEEDED 
 

     ADJOURNMENT 
  

 
The Mayor and City Council retreat will be held February 7-8, 2025 at Amicalola Lodge. 

 
The next regularly scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, March 3, 2025 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should contact the Clerk at 
Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 02/03/2025 
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held January 9, 2025 

 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #       7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/03/2025 
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 

 

• REGULAR MEETING HELD JANUARY 9, 2025 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Thursday, January 9, 2025 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 3 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Walden called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.   

2. ROLL CALL: Councilmember Sandy Sawyer, Councilmember Mark French, Councilmember Caleb 
Phillips, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City Manager Bob Bolz, Deputy City Clerk Tracy Smith, Public 
Works Director Trampas Hansard, Utility Director Jacob Barr, Finance Director Robin Gazaway, 
Downtown Development Director Amanda Edmondson and Planning Director Ron Haynie.  

 

Councilmember William Illg was absent.     

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE: Invocation and pledge were led by Councilmember Sawyer.   

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Walden encouraged everyone to be safe during the snowstorm.  He 
also announced that the applicant has withdrawn their requests concerning items #9, #15 and #16. 
The City of Dawsonville received a $7,500,000 grant from the State for the construction of the 
wastewater treatment plant. 

 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda with the removal of items #9, #15 
and #16 made by M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   

 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  None     

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda made by C. Phillips; second by S. 
Sawyer. Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held December 16, 2024 
• Executive Session held December 16, 2024 
• Special Called Meeting held December 23, 2024 
• Executive Session held December 23, 2024 

b. Approve and Set Qualifying Fees for the 2025 Municipal Election:  The qualifying fees 
were set as follows: 

Councilmember, Post 2 $265.00 
Councilmember, Post 4 $265.00 

 

8. EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION:  The Mayor and Council awarded David Medina (not in attendance) a 
one year service award and Beth Tuttle received a four year service award.  Sara Beacham was 
awarded the November Employee of the Month; Annette Watson was awarded the December 
Employee of the Month and Sara Beacham was awarded Fall Employee of the Quarter and the 2024 
Employee of the Year award.  
 

BUSINESS 
 

9. Removed from the agenda; applicant withdrew the request (ZA-C2500044). 
 

10. SPECIAL CALLED MEETING FOR MAYOR & COUNCIL RETREAT:  Mayor Walden called a 
Special Called Meeting for the City Council to be held on Friday, February 7 – Saturday, February 8, 
2025 for the purpose of a Mayor and Council retreat.  The meeting will be held at the Amicalola Lodge 
located at 418 Amicalola Falls Road in Dawsonville, Georgia beginning at 8:30 a.m. on February 7, 
2025. 

 

11. 2025 VAPE LICENSE FOR SIF INVESTMENT LLC:  Motion to approve the 2025 vape license for 
SIF Investment, LLC made by M. French; second by C. Phillips. Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

 

12. UNCOLLECTED DEBT ON UTILITY ACCOUNTS:  Motion to approve writing off uncollected debt on 
utility accounts in the amount of $4,254.00 made by M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

13. VAR-C2500068: Hardeman Communities, Inc (Creekstone Subdivision) has requested a variance for 
a reduced front setback from the required 20 feet to 15 feet; located at TMP 083 026 189, 210 Timber 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Thursday, January 9, 2025 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 2 of 3 
 

Ridge, Lot 64, Dawsonville, GA.  Public Hearing Date: City Council Regular Meeting, Thursday, 
January 9, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. 
 

Planning Director Haynie read the variance request and stated it does not meet the criteria according 
to the City’s ordinances due to exceeding the twenty percent threshold for a setback variance. He 
stated this applies to both requests – VAR-C2500068 and VAR-C2500069. 
 

Motion to open the public hearing made by S. Sawyer; second by M. French.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  Mayor Walden conducted the public hearing.          

                 The following person(s) spoke in favor of the request: 
 

• George Butler, 132 Hawkins St, Dahlonega, GA – He is the attorney representing Hardeman 
Communities and asked to speak for both items #13 and #14. He provided details regarding 
the variance request and stated he understands the Council cannot grant the variances as 
requested.         

      The ten minute allowance for the public hearing expired.  Motion to extend the public hearing by three 
minutes for both sides made by M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.    

 

• Mr. Butler asked to be allowed to withdraw the requests and reapply with the twenty percent 
limitation.          

      Attorney Tallant asked for confirmation from Mr. Butler as to whether he was asking for the Council 
to allow him to withdraw the requests without prejudice; Mr. Butler confirmed that is accurate.  Attorney 
Tallant informed the Council they could suspend the public hearing if they were inclined to accept the 
withdrawal of the requests without prejudice.  The Council decided to continue the public hearing on 
this request to allow those present to be heard.         

 

The following person(s) spoke in opposition to the request:   
 

• Logan Samples, 235 Timber Ridge, Dawsonville, GA – He spoke against both item #13 and 
item #14 citing safety concerns including fire and the length of the driveway creating potential 
obstructions.  He also voiced concerns over his home’s value diminishing and believes even 
with a new variance application this would not work as the home would be built too close to 
his home. He also stated he does not believe the builder is experiencing a hardship without 
the approved variance since they created the lots themselves and considers the issue to be 
self-induced by the builder. He suggested the lot be combined and build one home to the 
existing setback allowances or to allow the lots to be turned into greenspace for the 
community.  
 

• Shelby Argento, 213 Timber Ridge, Dawsonville, GA -  She spoke against the variance 
requests for both items #13 and #14 stating her concerns about creating a shorter driveway 
which would likely result in street parking detracting from the community’s appeal and possibly 
decreased home values.  She also feels the addition of these two homes with reduced 
setbacks would create an overcrowded and cramped space in the cul de sac.  She also 
suggested combining the lots or using it for greenspace.   

      Motion to close the public hearing made by M. French; second by S. Sawyer.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.   

 

      Mayor Walden asked the applicant to confirm their request to withdraw the variance requests for the 
record; the applicant confirmed.    

 

Motion to approve the request from the applicant to withdraw VAR-C2500068 and VAR-C2500069 
without prejudice made by M. French; second by C. Phillips. Vote carried unanimously in favor. 
 

14. Public hearing suspended; applicant withdrew the request and Council approved without prejudice 
(VAR-C2500069) 
 

15. Removed from the agenda; applicant withdrew the request (VAR-C2500072). 
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Thursday, January 9, 2025 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 3 of 3 
 

16. Removed from the agenda; applicant withdrew the request (VAR-C2500073). 
     

    STAFF REPORTS 
 

17. BOB BOLZ, CITY MANAGER:  City Manager Bolz reported the leak adjustment total was $73.47. 
 

18. ROBIN GAZAWAY, FINANCE DIRECTOR:  Finance Director Gazaway provided the financial reports 
representing fund balances and activity through December 31, 2024 in the agenda packet. 
 

    MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS:  None    

        ADJOURNMENT 
 

At 5.59 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by C. Phillips; second by S. Sawyer.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor. 

  
 Approved this 3rd day of February 2025 

 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
   ___________________________________ 
   John Walden, Mayor 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 
         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  
 
         
   Sandra Sawyer, Councilmember Post 3 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
 
 
Attest: _________________________        
           Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                                  EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION_____________  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/03/2025  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO RECOGNIZE AND PRESENT EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 
 

    
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Bob Bolz, City Manager________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   8    
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY BOARD APPOINTMENT 
 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/03/2025   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    ____ Other   

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve:    ____  Enterprise Fund    ____  General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO APPOINTMENT CHRIS SHEETS TO THE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY TO 
FULFILL THE UNEXPIRED TERM OF TREY THOMAS THROUGH 12/31/2025 

 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

CHRIS SHEETS HAS BEEN VETTED AS PER THE CITY’S PROCESS 
 
 

     OPTIONS:   
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION:   
 
APPROVE AS REQUESTED 
 
 

 
 
REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager_ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   9     
 

 

X 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH DAWSON COUNTY: SHOAL 

CREEK ROAD PAVING PROJECT 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/03/2025 
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

   TO REQUEST APPROVAL OF THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
DAWSON COUNTY AND THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE REGARDING A CROSS-
JURISDICTIONAL ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 

 SHOAL CREEK ROAD FROM THE HISTORIC COURTHOUSE TO SR 136 
 
 CITY’S PORTION IS TO BE PAID OUT OF LMIG AND TSPLOST AND/OR GENERAL FUND NOT 

TO EXCEED $450,000.00 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• DAWSON COUNTY WILL ABSORB THE COSTS TO REPAVE SHOAL CREEK ROAD WITHIN THE 
CITY LIMITS AS PER THE SETTLEMENT AND RELEASE AGREEMENT ON MAY 20, 2021. 
 

• THE CITY AGREES TO PAY THE FDR EXPENSES ON SHOAL CREEK ROAD WITHIN THE CITY 
LIMITS NOT TO EXCEED $450,000.00 

    
   

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 
    RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   10     
 

 

 



1 
 

STATE OF GEORGIA 
COUNTY OF DAWSON 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEEMENT BETWEEN 
DAWSON COUNTY AND THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE REGARDING 

A CROSS-JURISDICTIONAL ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
 

(Shoal Creek Road) 
(from Historic Courthouse to SR 136) 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT, effective as of _______________, 2025, is by and between 
DAWSON COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia (“Dawson”), and the CITY 
OF DAWSONVILLE, a Georgia municipal corporation (“Dawsonville”). Individually, Dawson 
and Dawsonville may be referred to herein as a “Party,” and, collectively, as the “Parties.” 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article IX, Section III, Paragraph I of the Constitution of the 
State of Georgia, cities and counties are authorized to contract with each other for a period not 
exceeding 50 years for the provision of services, or for the joint or separate use of facilities or 
equipment, so long as such contracts deal with activities, services, or facilities which such cities 
and counties are authorized by law to undertake or provide; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article IX, Section II, Paragraph III of the Constitution of the 
State of Georgia, Dawson and Dawsonville are authorized, jointly and severally, to exercise 
powers and provide services related to street and road construction maintenance, including curbs, 
sidewalks, street lights, and devices to control the flow of traffic on streets and roads constructed 
by counties and municipalities or any combination thereof; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article IX, Section II, Paragraph III of the Constitution of the 
State of Georgia, Dawson is prohibited from exercising these powers or providing any such service 
inside the boundaries of Dawsonville except by contract with Dawsonville; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 32-4-62(d), Dawson has the authority provided in 
O.C.G.A. § 32-4-112(b) to contract with Dawsonville and expend funds for work on public roads 
within Dawsonville’s jurisdictional boundary; and  

 WHEREAS, a portion of Shoal Creek Road between State Route (“SR”) 136 and the 
Dawson Historic Courthouse located at 31 Main St, Dawsonville, GA 30534 (“Historic 
Courthouse”) lies within Dawsonville’s jurisdiction and a larger portion of that section of Shoal 
Creek Road lies within Dawson’s jurisdiction; and 

 WHEREAS, Dawson and Dawsonville are parties to that certain Settlement and Release 
Agreement effective on May 20, 2021, wherein Dawson agreed as a part of such settlement to 
repave, as part of its road and culvert improvements projects, Shoal Creek Road from the Historic 
Courthouse to SR 136; and 

 WHEREAS, following further inspection of that portion of Shoal Creek Road to be 
repaved, the Parties agree that repaving is no longer a viable, long-term solution and additional 



2 
 

work beyond just repaving the road (e.g., deep patch and resurfacing and/or full depth reclamation) 
should be completed to extend the life of the road; and 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with the applicable state law requirements, Dawson will 
conduct a competitive bid solicitation which will result in an agreement between Dawson and a 
paving company (the “Contractor”), which agreement scope will include full depth reclamation 
work to be completed on that portion of Shoal Creek Road lying within Dawsonville’s jurisdiction 
(the “Project”); and 

 WHEREAS, Dawsonville has agreed to pay for a portion of the full depth reclamation 
work to be completed on the roadway within Dawsonville’s jurisdiction; and 

 WHEREAS, the Parties agree that coordination of construction efforts for cross-
jurisdictional road improvement projects, including the Project herein, provides cost savings and 
efficiencies that are in the best interest of the citizens of both Dawson and Dawsonville.  

 NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises, the public 
purposes, and the acknowledgment and agreements contained herein, and for other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties 
mutually agree to the above recitals and as follows: 

1. Agreement. 
 

a. Dawson’s Duty to Manage the Project. The Parties agree that Dawson shall 
assume primary responsibility for management of the Project, including completion 
of the Work (described below), its public road construction/maintenance agreement 
with a paving company (the “Contractor”), and any necessary warranty work to 
effectuate repairs covered by any applicable warranty. 
 

b. General Description of the Work. The work to be performed pursuant to this 
Agreement consists of full depth reclamation work of approximately 4,433 linear 
feet of Shoal Creek Road lying within Dawsonville’s jurisdiction (the “Work”). 
Dawson shall complete the Work using the services of the Contractor. 
 

c. Cost Allocation. The Parties agree to pay for the cost of the Work to be completed 
within Dawsonville’s jurisdiction (full depth reclamation work) in accordance with 
the following percentages:  
 

(a) Dawsonville: 70.34% 
(b) Dawson: 29.66% 

Dawsonville’s contribution hereunder shall not exceed $450,000.00 unless a larger 
amount is agreed to by and between the Parties in accordance with subsection f 
below.   



3 
 

Except for any reasonably disputed amounts (which shall be paid promptly upon 
resolution of the dispute), Dawsonville shall pay all amounts due under this IGA to 
Dawson within thirty (30) days of request. 

 
d. Dawsonville’s Right and Duty to Review the Work. Dawsonville shall have the 

right and duty to review the Work and to advise Dawson of any observed 
discrepancies or potential problems so that these can be timely addressed with the 
Contractor.  Dawsonville may, but shall not be required to, test or inspect the Work 
for compliance with applicable technical standards. Dawsonville acknowledges 
that its remedies against the Contractor for defective Work may be limited to those 
remedies available to Dawson in its contract with the Contractor to the extent such 
remedies can be enforced by Dawson. Dawsonville shall respond in a timely 
manner to any issue that may arise during the Work that requires its input. The 
Parties shall make reasonable and good-faith efforts to coordinate their oversight 
of the Work and proactively address any issues that may arise, including any 
warranty requests for the work performed. 

 
e. Disputes with the Contractor. Dawson shall address with the Contractor any 

issues or concerns raised by Dawsonville concerning the Work and, subject to the 
limitations below, Dawson shall make good faith efforts to enforce the contract 
with the Contractor for the benefit of Dawsonville. Except as separately agreed 
between the Parties, Dawson shall not be required to write any demand letter or file 
any lawsuit against the Contractor or take any other similar formal legal action 
arising out of the Work. 

 
f. Change Orders. Dawson will discuss any proposed change orders that operate to 

increase the cost of the Project for the Work to be performed within Dawsonville’s 
jurisdiction with Dawsonville in advance of approving such change orders with the 
Contractor. Upon Dawsonville’s approval of any such proposed change order, 
Dawsonville agrees to timely pay all costs associated therewith in accordance with 
subsection c. hereinabove.  

 
g. Contractor Insurance and Contract Provisions. Dawson shall make a good faith 

effort to include in its contract with Contractor, or to execute an amendment to such 
contract, a requirement that: (1) Dawsonville is named as an additional insured on 
any liability policies covering the Work, (2) Dawsonville is named as an intended 
third-party beneficiary of such contract, and (3) the Contractor be required to give 
notice to the County within a reasonable time after discovering that the actual 
contract quantities for the Work within Dawsonville’s jurisdiction will exceed the 
estimated quantities, which notice the County will provide to the City upon receipt. 

 



4 
 

2. Agreement Term.  This Agreement shall commence upon execution by the Parties and 
shall expire upon completion of all duties and obligations provided herein, provided that 
the term of the Agreement shall not exceed fifty (50) years. 
 

3. Termination for Convenience. Either Party may terminate this Agreement for 
convenience by providing written notice of termination to the other Party.  If Dawsonville 
terminates this Agreement for convenience: (a) Dawson shall promptly (but in any event, 
not later than fourteen (14) calendar days following receipt of a termination notice from 
Dawsonville) terminate the Work in its contract with the Contractor (but only that portion 
of the Work that is within Dawsonville’s jurisdiction); and (b) Dawsonville shall reimburse 
Dawson for all reimbursable costs incurred through the date of termination of the Dawson-
Contractor contract. 
 

4. Assignment or Transfer. The rights, privileges and obligations under this Agreement 
shall not be assigned or transferred by either Party without the prior written consent of the 
other party. 
 

5. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Georgia.  If any action at law or in equity is brought to enforce or 
interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the rules, regulations, statutes and laws of the 
State of Georgia will control. 
 

6. Public Procurement Requirements. Each Party agrees that it will comply with all public 
road work procurement requirements under any applicable state or federal law related to 
any construction, improvements, or services contemplated by this Agreement. 
 

7. E-Verify and Title VI. Each Party agrees that it will comply with all E-Verify and Title 
VI requirements and execute any documents reasonably required related to such 
compliance.  Further, each Party agrees that any contracts let for the Project and/or the 
Work shall contain all required E-Verify and Title VI requirements under applicable law. 
 

8. Cooperation. Each Party shall, at the request of the other, make, execute and deliver or 
obtain and deliver all instruments and documents and shall do or cause to be done all such 
other things which either Party may reasonably require to effectuate the provisions and 
intention of this Agreement. 
 

9. Authority to Execute. Each of the individuals executing this Agreement on behalf of his 
or her respective Party agrees and represents that he or she is authorized to do so and further 
agrees and represents that this Agreement has been duly passed upon by the required 
governmental agency or board in accordance with all applicable laws and spread upon the 
minutes thereof.   
 



5 
 

10. Force Majeure. In case by reason of force majeure, any Party hereto shall be rendered 
unable, wholly or in part, to carry out its obligations under this Agreement, then if such 
Party shall give notice and full particulars of such force majeure in writing to the other 
Party within a reasonable time after occurrence of the event or cause relied on, the 
obligation of the Party giving such notice, so far as it is affected by such force majeure, 
shall be suspended during the continuance of the inability then claimed, but for no longer 
period.  Such Party shall endeavor to remove or overcome such inability with all reasonable 
dispatch. The term “force majeure,” as employed herein, shall mean (a) any cause beyond 
the Party’s reasonable control; (b) any act(s) of God; (c) any change in applicable 
governmental rules or regulations rendering the performance of any portion of this 
Agreement legally impossible; (d) strikes, lockout(s) or other labor disputes or industrial 
disturbance(s); (e) any war, hostility, embargo, sabotage, civil disturbance, riot, 
insurrection, pandemic/epidemic, invasion or act(s) of a public enemy; (f) order(s) of any 
kind of the Government of the United States or the State of Georgia or any civil or military 
authority; and (g) natural disaster, catastrophe, epidemics, landslides, lightning, 
earthquakes, fires, hurricanes, storms, floods, washouts, droughts, or explosions, or 
breakage or accidents outside the Party’s control which prevent performance under this 
Agreement. 
 

11. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties 
and supersedes and replaces any and all other agreements, either oral or in writing, between 
the Parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. No other agreement, 
statement or promise relating to the subject matter of this Agreement not contained in this 
Agreement shall be valid or binding.  This Agreement may be modified or amended only 
by a written document signed by representatives of all Parties with appropriate 
authorization. 
 

12. Waiver. No failure by either Party to enforce any right or power granted under this 
Agreement, or to insist upon strict compliance, and no custom or practice of either Party at 
variance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall constitute a general waiver 
of any future breach or default or affect a Party’s right to demand exact and strict 
compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  Further, no express waiver 
shall affect any term or condition other than the one specified in such waiver, and that one 
only for the time and manner specifically stated. 
 

13. Severability.  Should any provision of this Agreement or application thereof to any person 
or circumstance be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement or the 
application of such provision to any person or circumstance, other than those to which it is 
held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each provision of this 
Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the full extent permitted by law.   
 

14. Agreement Jointly Drafted by the Parties. Each Party represents that it has reviewed and 
become familiar with this Agreement and has notified the other Party of any discrepancies, 



6 
 

conflicts or errors herein. The Parties agree that, if any ambiguity or question of intent or 
interpretation arises, this Agreement is to be construed as if the Parties had drafted it jointly, 
as opposed to being construed against a Party because it was responsible for drafting one 
or more provisions of the Agreement.   
 

15. Records. Each Party shall maintain records relating to matters covered by this Agreement 
as required by law and by any additional requirements in this Agreement.  Such records 
shall be maintained for at least a period of three (3) years following the termination or 
expiration of this Agreement. 
 

16. Notices. All notices, demands or requests required or permitted to be given pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been properly given or served 
and shall be effective on being deposited or placed in the United States mail, postage 
prepaid and registered or certified with return receipt requested to the addresses appearing 
below, or when delivered by hand to the addresses indicated below: 

If to Dawsonville: 
 
City of Dawsonville, Georgia 
Administrative Offices 
415 Highway 53 East, Suite 100 
Dawsonville, GA 30534 
ATTN: City Manager 

If to Dawson: 
 
Dawson County, Georgia 
Administrative Offices 
25 Justice Way 
Dawsonville, GA 30534 
ATTN: County Manager 

  
17. Settlement Agreement Satisfaction.  The Parties hereto agree that Dawson’s obligations 

regarding the repaving of Shoal Creek Road as described under that certain Settlement and 
Release Agreement effective on May 20, 2021, a copy of which is attached hereto marked 
“Exhibit A,” including the timing requirements stated therein, shall be fully and finally 
satisfied upon completion of the Project described herein.  

 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON NEXT PAGE]   



7 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto, acting by and through their duly authorized 
officials and officers pursuant to appropriate ordinances and resolutions hereinbefore duly and 
properly adopted by each, have caused this Agreement to be executed in duplicate counterparts 
and the official seals of each Party properly affixed, each delivering to the other one of said 
duplicate counterparts, the day and year first above written. 

 

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA, 
by and through its City Council 
 
 
By: _______________________________ 
       John Walden, Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest: ____________________________ 
            Beverly Banister, City Clerk 
 
 
 

(city seal) 
 

 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form:  
 
 
______________________ 
City Attorney 

DAWSON COUNTY, GEORGIA, by and 
through its Board of Commissioners 
 
 
By: _______________________________ 
       Billy Thurmond, Chairman 
 
 
 
Attest: ____________________________ 
            Kristen Cloud, County Clerk 
 
 
 

(county seal) 
 

 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form:  
 
 
______________________ 
County Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



8 
 

EXHIBIT A 

SETTLEMENT AND RELEASE AGREEMENT 

 

 

 













                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    CHANGES TO PROJECTS CONCERNING LOCAL MAINTENANCE AND 

IMPROVEMENT GRANT FUNDS 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/03/2025 
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

   TO REQUEST APPROVAL TO CHANGE LMIG FY 2023, FY 2024, FY 2024 LRA AND FY 2025 
COMBINED FUNDING FROM REPAIRING AND REPAVING MAPLE STREET ROAD AND ITS 
SIDEWALKS TO FUND THE FDR WORK ON THE CITY’S PORTION OF SHOAL CREEK ROAD 
AS PER THE IGA.  THE TOTAL AMOUNT INCLUDING APPLICABLE MATCH IS $230, 825.18. 

 
 TO REQUEST APPROVAL TO CHANGE LMIG FY 2024 SAP FUNDS FROM INSTALLING FOUR 

FLASHING SCHOOL ZONE BEACONS ON PERIMETER ROAD TO INSTALLING FOUR 
FLASHING SCHOOL ZONE BEACONS ON ALLEN STREET AND HWY 9 NORTH.  THE TOTAL 
AMOUNT INCLUDING APPLICABLE MATCH IS $19,500.00. 

 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL HAS PREVIOUSLY APPROVED THE ORIGINAL PROJECTS AND GRANT FUNDING AT 
VARIOUS COUNCIL MEETINGS IN THE PAST 

 

   
    

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 
    RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   11     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:  ATLANTA MOTORSPORTS PARK: SPECIAL EVENT REQUEST TO EXCEED SOUND LIMITS 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 2/03/2025     
 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

TO REQUEST APPROVAL OF SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT FOR A TRACK DAY ON MONDAY, APRIL 28, 
2025 TO ALLOW SOUND LIMITS TO BE EXCEEDED   
 
SEE ATTACHED ZSP C2300063 STIPULATION #17 FOR SOUND LIMITS 

    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
• ZSP C2300063 STIPULATION #19 REQUIRES CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL TO CONDUCT A 

RACING EVENT WITH DIFFERENT PERFORMANCE STANDARDS ON A CASE BY CASE BASIS. 
(SEE ATTACHED) 

 
• TWO (2) EVENT PERMITS ISSUED IN 2024 FOR EXCEEDING SOUND LIMITS  

 
• APPLICANT HAS BEEN REQUESTED TO ATTEND THE MEETING TO ANSWER QUESTIONS 

 

   
 

     OPTIONS:   
 

Based on data filed as the result of the past 2 special event permits for the same purpose staff 
recommends approval of the request. If so decided, the applicant may be requested to notify neighboring 
property owners. 
 
 

     SAMPLE MOTION RECOMMENDED: 
 
Approve, Deny or Postpone 
   
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: Ron Haynie, Planning Director 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   12     
 































                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: CITY MANAGER    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/03/2025  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PROVIDE CITY UPDATES  

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES:   
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED OUTLINE  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Bob Bolz, City Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     13     
 

 

 



CITY MANAGER REPORT 

PREPARED JANUARY 27 FOR FEBRUARY 3, 2025 

Winter Storm Enzo: Bitter cold and some fine snow flurries is all our area experienced from the 
second winter storm of 2025. We pretreated the roads for brine on two occasions. The bulk of the 
frozen precipitation was south of our area. Here, it was cold dry air. Despite single digit 
temperatures, no city facilities experienced frozen or ruptured pipes.  

Assistant City Manager Interviews: Reference checks are complete, and a recommendation for 
the City Council is forthcoming. next week.  
 
City Council Retreat: Staff are looking forward to the retreat with the City Council to be held 
February 7-8 at Amicalola Falls Lodge. 
 
Patio & Granddaddy Mimms Grand Opening: Their grand opening scheduled for 01/10 was 
postponed due to the weather. The new date is February 28th. We cannot afford to wait until then to 
start the patio; so, work will start on it soon weather dependent.  
 
Main Street Park Rest Room Vandalism: The week of January 20th the divider stalls for the urinals 
in the men’s restroom were forcefully torn off the wall. This crime is under investigation by the 
Sheriff’s Office.  
 
GDOT Work on the Downtown Roundabout: Work should start soon with the plan to conduct 
most of it at night. 
 
Shoal Creek Bridge Construction & Paving Project: This project is underway with the major 
relocation of our water service line complete. At the same time, the county plans to carry out FDR 
on Shoal Creek Road. This will involve our financial support for this project as well. In January we 
will present a request and recommendation to the City Council for use of LMIG and TSPLOST funds 
for this project to the tune of an estimated $449,692.00. Also, work should start on the $2 million 
roundabout at Shoal Creek and Hwy 136. 

GDOT TAP Grant: A GDOT Transportation Alternative Grant was submitted for consideration, and 
we are still in contention. If we are awarded the grant, it should provide funding for roundabouts at 
Hwy 9S and Perimeter Road as well as at Allen Street and Hwy 53. 

TSPLOST: Planning several transportation projects. Maple Steet continues to be a priority as is 
Shoal Creek due to the timing of the bridge construction and roundabout construction.  

Impact Fees: The City Council approved the revised CIE, and it has been submitted to DCA for 
their approval. DCA requested additional information from GMRC which has also been submitted, 
and we await approval from the agency. 

Streetlight Conversion: GA Power will be converting all the streetlights the city is responsible for 
to LED, which should save power usage and be cost effective over the long haul.  



Water System Capacity Increase: EPD has approved testing at the potential spring site, and it has 
been completed. We await the results.  
 
Gold Creek Foods Mediation: Staff prepared some follow-up information for this effort including 
recommendations for our expert. 
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant: Turnipseed, after talking with GEFA, anticipates this project will be 
put out to bid this spring. Worst case, once ground is broken, two years to completion. Thanks to 
the additional $7.5 million grant, which puts our total grant funding for this project at $10.8 million, 
we only have to finance $8 to 10 million from GEFA making our payments much lower. 
 
Flock Public Safety Cameras: Staff are working with Flock cameras and the DCSO regarding 
installation of cameras at locations in the city. The Sheriff’s Office is placing some throughout the 
county and the school system is looking at cameras at each school’s entrance/exit. 
 
Amicalola Electric Membership Corporation Donation: The city received a $20,000.00 grant from 
AEMC to be used toward construction of a rest room and shelter to serve the pickleball courts and 
other amenities on that end of the park. This is the third year in a row we have received this gracious 
award. We are in the process of getting bids on the shelter construction. 
 
Main Street Park: 
 

• Surveillance Cameras: With December 16th approval of the City Council, installation of the 
12 additional surveillance cameras focused on the pickleball and basketball courts, 
pavilions #1 and #3, the new rest room/shelter, and the skate park are underway. We are 
also researching adding power for streetlight at the dog park at which we would also add a 
camera.  

• Disc Golf Expansion: the addition of nine more holes to our disc golf course utilizing the 
property of the Board of Education is moving along nicely. The trail is complete, the course 
laid out, the baskets installed, sign stands received, and maps under development. 

• Playground & Shade: Staff continue researching shade for various locations in the park, 
including the playground, skate park, pickleball courts, and dog park. We received 
$10,000.00 from the Dawsonville Civitan Club which will be used for this project over the 
inclusive playground area. Impact Fees could be used to supplement this grant. Our goal is 
to get 75-90% of the equipment under some form of shade. Staff are evaluating these 
projects which are anticipated to cost more than $100,000.00.  

• Water Fountains: We continue evaluating additional locations for water fountains within 
the park, each costing about $7,000. 

• Amphitheater Stage: Staff are researching options for this project. 
• Splash Pad: Research into the possibility of adding this amenity is underway. The current 

cost estimate is over $350,000.00. Impact Fees could help fund this project.  
• Power for Amphitheater & Christmas Tree Walk: We are working with GA Power for 

additional power for the future amphitheater. Impact Fees could provide a great source of 
revenue for this project. 

 
 



Commissions:  

• The Downtown Development Authority has one vacancy, and a candidate has been vetted. 
We await a second City Council interview. There are no expirations of terms until December 
2025. The meeting scheduled for January 27, 2025, was moved to January 28th. 

• We have one vacancy on the Historic Preservation Commission and no expirations until 
December 2025. The next meeting is scheduled for February 24, 2025. 

• The next Planning Commission meeting scheduled for January 13, 2025, was cancelled due 
to no agenda items. 

Personnel:  
 

• We hosted our monthly staff meeting this week and our special guest was Candace Amos, 
an instructor with GMA. Our staff will be treated to financial wellness training in an 8-pillar 
course sponsored by GMA and Truist Bank. Each course lasts about an hour and will be 
offered as part of our monthly staff meetings. This course is free of charge. A flier about the 
program and the staff meeting agenda is attached. 
 

Leak Adjustment: We had one leak adjustment this month for a total of $152.46, water - $55.37 
and sewer - $97.09. 
 
 
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: FINANCE DIRECTOR    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/03/2025   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 FINANCIAL REPORTS REFLECTING FUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY FOR THROUGH 
JANUARY 31, 2025 WILL BE PROVIDED DURING THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL RETREAT 

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
     
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Robin Gazaway, Finance Director   

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  14   
 

 

 


	1. 02.03.2025 AGENDA City Council Regular Meeting
	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2. 01.09.2025 MINUTES City Council Regular Meeting and Work Session.DRAFT
	8. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
	9. 1. Executive Summary For DDA APPOINTMENT
	10. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items IGA SHOAL CREEK ROAD
	10. 2. 2025-1-15 Shoal Creek Road IGA Final
	2025-1-15 Shoal Creek Road IGA Final
	SPLOST Settlement and Release Agreement- 05.20.21

	11. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items LMIG PROJECT CHANGES
	12. 1. 02-03-2025 Executive Summary for AMP Unlimited Sound Request
	12. 2. 04.28.2025 AMP_Redacted
	13. 1.  Executive Summary For Agenda Items CITY MANAGER
	13. 2. 02032025 CITY MANAGER REPORT
	14. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items FINANCE DIRECTOR



